Public Document Pack

AGENDA
NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information
only

Committee

- GOVERNANCE & AUDIT
COMMITTEE

Date & Time

- Friday, 29th September, 2017 at 2.00 pm

Venue

- Anglia Room, Conference Suite,
Elizabeth House, Dereham

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least
two working days before the meeting. If the information requested is
available, this will be provided, and reported to Committee.
Members
Mr J. Plaskett, Independent Lay Advisor
Mr W.P. Borrett (Chairman)
Mr P S Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman)
Mr P.J. Hewett

Mrs L.H. Monument
Mr M. J. Nairn
Mr J. Newton

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE
REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE
TELEPHONES

Democratic Services
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke,
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE
Date: Wednesday, 20 September 2017

Please ask for Julie Britton DDI (01362) 656343
e-mail: julie.britton@breckland.gov.uk

Governance & Audit Committee
29 September 2017

PART A - ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Page(s)
herewith
1.

MINUTES

5-7

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2017.
2.

ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES (IF ANY) (STANDING ITEM)

3.

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence.

4.

URGENT BUSINESS
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent
business, pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act
1972.

5.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate for the entire
consideration of the matter, in respect of any matter in which a Member has a
disclosable pecuniary interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act
2011. Members are also required to withdraw from the meeting room as
stated in the Standing Orders of this Council.

6.

NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING
To note the names of any non-members wishing to address the meeting.

7.

TRAINING (STANDING ITEM)
To note if there are any training issues/ requests.

8.

QUARTER 1 2017-18 RISK REPORT
Report of Maxine O’Mahony Governance.

9.

8 - 11

Executive Director of Strategy and

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

12 - 37

Report of External Audit, Ernst & Young.
10.

WORK PROGRAMME
A copy of the Committee’s work programme is attached. The Committee is
asked to consider whether any additions, deletions or amendments to the
programme are required.

11.

NEXT MEETING
To note the arrangements for the next meeting on Friday, 1 December 2017
at 10.00am in the Norfolk Room.

38

Governance & Audit Committee
29 September 2017
Page(s)
herewith

12.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
To consider the following resolution:
“That under Section 100(4)(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press
and the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 4 of Schedule 12A to the Act”.
ITEM FROM WHICH THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

13.

QUARTER 1 2017-18 RISK REPORT - APPENDIX 1

39 - 45

Agenda Item 1
BRECKLAND COUNCIL
At a Meeting of the
GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
Held on Friday, 28 July 2017 at 10.00 am in
Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham
PRESENT
Mr W.P. Borrett (Chairman)
Mr P. S. Wilkinson (ViceChairman)

Mrs L.H. Monument
Mr M. J. Nairn

In Attendance
Julie Britton
Alison Chubbock

-

Alison Riglar
Kevin Suter

-

Democratic Services Officer
Chief Accountant (Deputy Section 151
Officer) (BDC)
Manager, Ernst & Young
Executive Director, Ernst & Young
Action By

40/17 MINUTES (AGENDA ITEM 1)
The Minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2017 were confirmed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.
41/17 ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES (IF ANY) (STANDING ITEM)
(AGENDA ITEM 2)
None.
42/17 APOLOGIES (AGENDA ITEM 3)
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Paul Hewett and
John Newton.
43/17 URGENT BUSINESS (AGENDA ITEM 4)
None.
44/17 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS (AGENDA ITEM 5)
None.
45/17 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING (AGENDA
ITEM 6)
None.
46/17 TRAINING (STANDING ITEM) (AGENDA ITEM 7)
Members were reminded of the training session that had been arranged
to take place immediately following the Governance & Audit Committee
meeting on Friday, 29 September 2017.

1

5

Governance & Audit Committee
28 July 2017
Action By

47/17 AUDIT RESULTS REPORT 2016/17 (AGENDA ITEM 8)
Kevin Suter, the Executive Director for Ernst & Young LLP presented the
Audit Results report. The report summarised the key findings from the
2016/17 audit and the areas of work that had been covered. The Group
Accounts had been completed and an unqualified audit opinion on the
financial statements would be issued despite the fact that a response
from the bank in relation to the receipt of bank and investment
confirmations had not been forthcoming and therefore alternate
procedures had been undertaken. Alison Chubbock the Chief Accountant
and Deputy Section 151 Officer advised that there was no reason for the
lack of response and she would be taking this up with the bank in
question.
Members’ attention was drawn to page 21 of the agenda pack. The
Executive Director for Ernst & Young explained how the risks had been
set out and the programme of works undertaken and was pleased to
report that no major issues had been raised and he was happy with the
Council’s process.
Referring to property, plant and equipment valuations and the pensions’
valuations and disclosures on pages 23 and 24 of the agenda pack,
Members were informed that the audit focus was on the estimation
techniques undertaken for these very large figures involved; but all had
been reasonably assessed. The Chairman was aware that additional
payments were being requested under the pension funds and asked what
this would mean and what effect this would have on the end result.
Members were informed that the additional payments requested were
most likely an on-going process as part of the triennial valuation in order
to close the deficit.
The Executive Director for Ernst & Young LLP advised that an auditor had
been instructed to carry out the work undertaken in relation to Breckland
Bridge subsidiary. A number of issues had not as yet been resolved on
the subsidiary’s statutory accounts but were not material to this audit. It
was decided not to adjust the Council’s accounts as it was in relation to
technical accounting adjustments and had no bearing on the sale value of
Breckland Bridge assets in the long term.
The Chief Accountant and
Deputy S151 Officer had been happy with this approach.
It was noted that the Council had strong arrangements in place for
securing value for money (see page 33 of the agenda) and an unqualified
conclusion had been given on the Councils’ arrangements.
Referring to the fees (on page 44 of the agenda), Members were informed
that the audit fees had been contained at the level planned.
The Vice-Chairman was pleased with the work carried out by the
Accounting Team
The Chairman thanked everyone concerned.
The Audit Results report was otherwise noted.

2

6

Governance & Audit Committee
28 July 2017
Action By

48/17 AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016-17 (AGENDA ITEM 9)
The Chief Accountant & Deputy S151 Officer was pleased to present the
final audited statement of accounts which followed on from the previous
item. Councillor Hewett had raised a couple of points in relation to
formatting and these had been updated accordingly.
The Chairman asked if there was anything outstanding from the list of
questions raised by Councillor Hewett. It was noted that one of the
questions related to a colour used on the pie chart and it had already
been agreed that the colour black would be changed next year.
Councillor Monument felt that black and yellow should be avoided in
future. It was further noted that a better narrative would be included at
the start of the Accounts next year which should address one of the
comments made by Councillor Hewett.
The Annual Governance Statement within the Accounts (page 156
onwards) had been signed by the Chief Executive and the Leader
following a number of minor changes made (details of the changes were
circulated at the meeting) and there had been another paragraph added
to the letter of representation relating to Breckland Bridge covered by the
external auditors earlier in the meeting.
It was RESOLVED that:
a) the statement of accounts 2016-17 be approved;
b) the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2016-17 be approved;
and
c) the letter of representation 2016-17 be approved.
49/17 WORK PROGRAMME (AGENDA ITEM 10)
The Chairman felt that the Work Programme was looking a little empty
and asked if anyone had anything to add.
It was agreed that discussions would take place with Mark Stinson, the
Executive Manager for Governance & Deputy Monitoring Officer in
relation to his Annual Standards Review report and when that should be
brought back to Committee.
The Executive Director updated Members on what should be coming
forward from Ernst & Young. An email would be sent to the Democratic
Services accordingly.
The Work Programme was otherwise noted.
50/17 NEXT MEETING (AGENDA ITEM 11)
The arrangements for the next meeting on Friday, 29 September 2017 at
10.00am in the Norfolk Room were noted.
The meeting closed at 10.35 am
CHAIRMAN
3

7

Agenda Item 8

BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Maxine O’Mahony - Executive Director of Strategy and Governance

To:

Audit Committee – 29th September 2017

Author:

Greg Pearson - Corporate Improvement & Performance Manager

Subject:

Risk Report – Quarter 1 2017-18

Purpose:

To inform the Committee on the current status of the Councils’ strategic
risks

Recommendation(s):
1)
1.0

That the contents of the report are noted.
BACKGROUND

1.1

This report is has been compiled to include updates on strategic risks for quarter
1 of 2017-18.

1.2

Strategic risks are captured on the Corporate Dashboard which is available to the
Executive Management Team (EMT) and reviewed by EMT quarterly. In addition,
risks are reviewed monthly at the internal Performance, Risk & Audit Board chaired
by the Executive Director of Strategy and Governance.

1.4.

Strategic risks have been reviewed and updated with responsible members of the
Executive Management Team. The strategic risk register includes 14 strategic risks
(see Appendix A). These cover the over-arching risks that may affect the strategic
direction of the council, rather than risks linked to business continuity or those that
affect discreet service areas.

1.5

Strategic risks typically affect the whole of the organisation and not just one or more parts
of it. Strategic risks can potentially involve very high stakes and often affect the ability of
the organisation to survive, e.g. impact on the ability of the Council to achieve its
corporate plan objectives and purpose. Strategic risks are managed at senior level (EMT)
within the Council.

1.6

The Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 matrix, and is comparable with
best practice in other similar organisations. The risk matrix provides a comprehensive
assessment and understanding of risk likelihood and impact. The matrix results in a
numerical score which combines the impact of the risk occurring with the likelihood of it
happening.

1.7

Risks fall into High, Medium or Low categories depending on their rating
High
Medium
Low

8

1.8

Risks are tracked below in a heat map to represent the number of strategic risks currently
reported at each score

1.9

There is one risk currently reported in the high category. Post mitigation, the most
significant strategic risk remains the potential breach of the council’s ICT provision.
Scoring remains the same as the previous quarter, anti-virus and web filtering continue to
mitigate the risk of a virus infecting the systems; however a breach would have critical impact
as it would result in a total shutdown of ICT to minimize exposure. The service reports that
they are still working on further improvements which further mitigate the risk including
upgrades to a number of applications and servers, changes to the firewall and proactive
contact with staff about cyber security.

1.10

There are ten risks which fall into the medium category. Within this category there is an
additional risk and a further three risks that have changed score compared to the last quarter.
These are: • Business rate retention scheme – the risk score has decreased from nine in the
previous quarter to six, this is follows the lack of details of the 100% retention
scheme in the recent queens speech reducing the likelihood. Though this will
continue to be monitored
• Failure to deliver local plan and its delivery plan – the risk score has reduced
from twelve in the previous quarter to eight, this follows the local plan being agreed
by full council and into its final public consultation.
• Under occupancy of Riverside once complete – the risk score has increased
from six in the previous quarter to twelve, this is due to a lack of interest from the
market leaving units 1-4 currently unoccupied.
• General Data Protection Regulation Implication – this risk has been added to the
register to highlight the possible risk that the council faces if the new regulations,
which will replace the Data Protection Act, are not adopted within the required
timescales. However, there is work ongoing already to ensure the ICT provisions are
in place and staff are trained on the new regulations.

1.11

2.0

There are 3 risks which fall within the low category and are scored as they were in the
previous quarter.
OPTIONS

9

2.1

That the contents of the report are noted.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

Not applicable

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

That the Committee is made aware of the Council’s strategic risks and understands that
they are being managed and mitigated effectively.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no carbon footprint or environmental
implications.

5.2

Constitution & Legal

5.2.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct constitutional or legal implications.

5.3

Contracts

5.3.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct contract implications.

5.4

Corporate Priorities

5.4.1

The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the delivery of the Council’s
corporate priorities.

5.5

Crime and Disorder

5.5.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct crime and disorder implications.

5.6

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct equality or human rights implications.

5.7

Financial

5.7.1

The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the Council’s budgets and
financial management.

5.8

Health & Wellbeing

5.8.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no health or wellbeing implications.

5.9

Reputation

5.9.1

Risks which come to fruition have some reputational consequence. It is the purpose of the
risk management strategy to manage potential outcomes by means of control measures.

5.10

Risk Management

10

5.10.1 The report provides detail on the Council’s strategic risks.
5.11

Safeguarding

5.11.1 It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct safeguarding implications as a result
of this report

5.12

Staffing

5.12.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the delivery of the
Council’s corporate priorities.
5.13

Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.13.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct implications arising from this
report.

5.14

Transformation Programme

5.14.1

It is the opinion of the author that there are no direct implications arising from this
report.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

Not applicable.

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

ICT - Information Communication Technology

7.2

EMT - Executive Management Team

Background papers: -

See The Committee Report Guide

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email:

Greg Pearson, Corporate Improvement & Performance Manager
07500-030900
greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Breckland District Council Strategic Risk Register Q1 2017-18

11

Breckland Council
August 2017

Ernst & Young LLP

Agenda Item 9

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017

12

Contents

Contents
Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................................................................ 2
Purpose.................................................................................................................................................................................................. 5
Responsibilities....................................................................................................................................................................................... 7
Financial Statement Audit ..................................................................................................................................................................... 10
Value for Money .................................................................................................................................................................................... 15
Other Reporting Issues.......................................................................................................................................................................... 18
Focused on your future.......................................................................................................................................................................... 21
Appendix A

Audit Fees ..................................................................................................................................................................... 23

13
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited
body and via the PSAA website (www.psaa.co.uk)
The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of
auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment (updated 23 February 2017)” issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the
National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This Annual Audit Letter is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as
appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party.
Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you
may take the issue up with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London
SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our
service, you may of course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

EY  i

Executive Summary

14

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

Executive Summary
We are required to issue an annual audit letter to Breckland Council (the Council) following completion of our audit procedures for the year ended
31 March 2017.
Below are the results and conclusions on the significant areas of the audit process.
Area of Work

Conclusion

Opinion on the Council’s:
► Financial statements

Unqualified – the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Council as at 31 March 2017 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended.

►

Consistency of other information published
with the financial statements

Other information published with the financial statements was consistent with the Statement
of Accounts.

15

Concluding on the Council’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We concluded that you have put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money in
your use of resources.

Area of Work

Conclusion

Reports by exception:
► Consistency of Governance Statement

The Annual Governance Statement was consistent with our understanding of the Council.

►
►

►

Public interest report

We had no matters to report in the public interest.

Written recommendations to the Council,
which should be copied to the Secretary of
State

We had no matters to report.

Other actions taken in relation to our
responsibilities under the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014

We had no matters to report.

EY  2

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

Area of Work

Conclusion

Reporting to the National Audit Office (NAO) on
our review of the Council’s Whole of
Government Accounts return (WGA).

The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £350 million. Therefore, we did not
perform any audit procedures on the consolidation pack.

As a result of the above we have also:

16

Area of Work

Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with
governance of the Council communicating
significant findings resulting from our audit.

Our Audit Results Report was issued on 18 July 2017.

Issued a certificate that we have completed the
audit in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the
National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit
Practice.

Our certificate was issued on 28 July 2017.

In December 2017 we will also issue a report to those charged with governance of the Council summarising the certification work we have
undertaken.
We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council’s staff for their assistance during the course of our work.

Kevin Suter
Executive Director
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

EY  3

Purpose

17

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

Purpose
The Purpose of this Letter
The purpose of this annual audit letter is to communicate to Members and external stakeholders, including members of the public, the key issues
arising from our work, which we consider should be brought to the attention of the Council.
We have already reported the detailed findings from our audit work in our 2016/17 Audit Results Report to the 28 July 2017 Governance and
Audit Committee, representing those charged with governance. We do not repeat those detailed findings in this letter. The matters reported here
are the most significant for the Council.

18
EY  5

Responsibilities

19

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

Responsibilities
Responsibilities of the Appointed Auditor
Our 2016/17 audit work has been undertaken in accordance with the Audit Plan that we issued on 8 February 2017 and is conducted in
accordance with the National Audit Office's 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), and other guidance
issued by the National Audit Office.
As auditors we are responsible for:
►

Expressing an opinion:
►

On the 2016/17 financial statements; and

►

On the consistency of other information published with the financial statements.

20

►

Forming a conclusion on the arrangements the Council has to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

►

Reporting by exception:
►

If the annual governance statement is misleading or not consistent with our understanding of the Council;

►

Any significant matters that are in the public interest;

►

Any written recommendations to the Council, which should be copied to the Secretary of State; and

►

If we have discharged our duties and responsibilities as established by thy Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit
Practice.

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on you Whole of Government
Accounts return. The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £350 million. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the
return.

EY  7

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

Responsibilities of the Council
The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its statement of accounts accompanied by an Annual Governance Statement (AGS). In the
AGS, the Council reports publicly each year on how far it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has monitored and evaluated
the effectiveness of its governance arrangements in year, and any changes planned in the coming period.
The Council is also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

21
EY  8

Financial Statement
Audit

22

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

Financial Statement Audit
Key Issues
The Council’s Statement of Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show how it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its
financial management and financial health.
We audited the Council’s Statement of Accounts in line with the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office and issued an unqualified audit report on 28 July 2017.
Our detailed findings were reported to the July 2017 Governance and Audit Committee.
The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows:

23

Significant Risk

Conclusion

Management override of controls
A risk present on all audits is that management is in a
unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability
to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly,
and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise appear to be operating
effectively.

We did not identify any material weaknesses in controls or evidence of material
management override.
We did not identify any instances of inappropriate judgements being applied.
We did not identify any other transactions during our audit which appeared unusual
or outside the Council’s normal course of business

Auditing standards require us to respond to this risk by
testing the appropriateness of journals, testing
accounting estimates for possible management bias and
obtaining an understanding of the business rationale for
any significant unusual transactions.

Our testing did not identify any expenditure which had been inappropriately
capitalised.

For local authorities the potential for the incorrect
classification of revenue spend as capital is a particular
area where there is a risk of management override. We
therefore review capital expenditure on property, plant
and equipment to ensure it meets the relevant accounting
requirements to be capitalised.
EY  10

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

Other Key Findings

Conclusion

Presentation of the financial statements
Amendments have been made to the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2016/17 (the Code) changing
the way the financial statements are presented.

We proposed some minor disclosure amendments that management agreed to make in the
financial statements.

24

The new reporting requirements impact the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (CIES) and the Movement in Reserves
Statement, and include the introduction of a new
Expenditure and Funding Analysis note as a
result of the ‘Telling the Story’ review of the
presentation of local authority financial
statements.
The Code no longer requires statements or notes
to be prepared in accordance with Service
Reporting Code of Practice. Instead the Code
requires that the service analysis is based on the
organisational structure under which the
authority operates. We expect this to show the
Council’s segmental analysis.

In particular, we noted that the Expenditure & Funding Analysis (EFA), although positioned
amongst them, is not a Core Accounting Statement but a note to the accounts. As such the
narrative to the EFA has been updated to reflect this.

This change in the Code will require a new
structure for the primary statements, new notes
and full retrospective restatement of
comparatives. This restatement will require
audit review, which could potentially incur
additional costs, depending on the complexity
and manner in which the changes are made.
Property, plant and equipment valuations
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) represents
a material item on the Council’s balance sheet.
PPE is initially measured at cost and then
revalued to fair value (determined by the
amount that would be paid for the asset in its

Following full consideration of their work, we placed reliance on the Authority’s valuer.
We did not identify any material issues in valuations.

EY  11

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

existing use) on a 5 year rolling basis.
This is carried out by an expert valuer and is
based on a number of complex assumptions.
Annually assets are assessed to identify whether
there is any indication of impairment.
ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to
undertake procedures on the use of experts and
assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

25

Pensions valuations and disclosures
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice
and IAS19 require the Council to make extensive
disclosures within its financial statements
regarding the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) in which it is an admitted body.
The Council’s current pension fund deficit is a
highly material and sensitive item and the Code
requires that this liability be disclosed on the
Council’s Balance Sheet.

Assumptions used by the actuary and adopted by the Authority are considered to be generally
acceptable.
The sensitivities surrounding these assumptions have been correctly disclosed in Note 9 to the
financial statements.
No issues were identified in completing our work.

The information disclosed is based on the IAS19
report issued to the Council by the actuaries to
the Norfolk Pension Fund.
As part of their actuarial review, councils are
being asked to make additional payments to the
pensions scheme to fund deficits.

EY  12

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

Our application of materiality
When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be material for the
financial statements as a whole.
Item

Thresholds applied

Planning materiality

We determined planning materiality to be £1.36 million (2016: £1.4 million), which is 2% of
gross revenue expenditure on services reported in the group accounts of £60.8 million.
We consider gross revenue expenditure on services to be one of the principal considerations
for stakeholders in assessing the financial performance of the Council.

Reporting threshold

We agreed with the Governance and Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee
all audit differences in excess of £68,000 (2016: £70,000).

26

We also identified the following areas where misstatement at a level lower than our overall materiality level might influence the reader. For these
areas we developed an audit strategy specific to these areas. The areas identified and audit strategy applied include:
•

Remuneration disclosures - reduced materiality level of £5,000 applied in line with bandings disclosed.

•

Related party transactions, members’ allowances and exit packages - reduced materiality level applied equal to the reporting threshold.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant
qualitative considerations.

EY  13

Value for Money

27

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

Value for Money
We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use
of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.
Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:
•
•
•

Take informed decisions;
Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
Work with partners and other third parties.

Informed
decision making

28
Proper arrangements for
securing value for money

Sustainable
resource
deployment

Working with
partners and
third parties

EY  15

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

We did not identify any significant risks in relation to these criteria.
We have performed the procedures outlined in our audit plan. We did not identify any significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements to
ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.
We therefore issued an unqualified value for money conclusion on 28 July 2017.

29
EY  16

Other Reporting
Issues

30

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

Other Reporting Issues
Whole of Government Accounts
The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £350 million. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the consolidation pack.

Annual Governance Statement
We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s annual governance statement, identify any inconsistencies with the
other information of which we are aware from our work, and consider whether it is misleading.
We completed this work and did not identify any areas of concern.

Report in the Public Interest

31

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, to report on any matter that comes
to our attention in the course of the audit in order for it to be considered by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.
We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Written Recommendations
We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to designate any audit recommendation as one that requires the Council to
consider it at a public meeting and to decide what action to take in response.
We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a written recommendation.

Objections Received
We did not receive any objections to the 2016/17 financial statements from member of the public.

Other Powers and Duties
We identified no issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

EY  18

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

Independence
We communicated our assessment of independence in our Audit Results Report to the Governance and Audit Committee on 28 July 2017. In our
professional judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised
within the meaning regulatory and professional requirements.

Control Themes and Observations
As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of
testing performed. Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to
communicate to you significant deficiencies in internal control identified during our audit.
Our audit did not identify any controls issues to bring to the attention of the Governance and Audit Committee.

32
EY  19

Focused on your
future

33

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

Focused on your future
Area

Issue

Impact

Earlier deadline
for production
and audit of the
financial
statements
from 2017/18

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 introduced a significant
change in statutory deadlines from the 2017/18 financial year. From
that year the timetable for the preparation and approval of accounts
will be brought forward with draft accounts needing to be prepared
by 31 May and the publication of the audited accounts by 31 July.

These changes provide challenges for both the
preparers and the auditors of the financial statements.
To prepare for this change the Council has reviewed
and amended the closedown process over the last two
years to achieve draft accounts production by 31 May
for 2016/17. We issued our audit report by the 31
July 2017. This is an excellent achievement.

34

Through working together, we have agreed areas for
early work which have included testing of major
income and expenditure streams at month 9.
Reflecting on this year, there are a number of areas
where the closedown and audit processes can be
further improved going forward. We do not expect the
formal earlier deadline to pose a significant issue for
the Council, and believe an earlier start can be made in
next year’s audit.

EY  21

Appendix A

Audit Fees

35

Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31 March 2017 – Breckland Council

Appendix A

Audit Fees

Our fee for 2016/17 is in line with the scale fee set by the PSAA and reported in our 18 July 2017 Audit Results Report.

Description

Final Fee 2016/17
£

Planned Fee 2016/17
£

Scale Fee 2016/17
£

Final Fee 2015/16
£

Total Audit Fee – Code work

46,897

46,897

44,537

47,678

Total Audit Fee – Certification of
claims and returns

TBC

15,465

15,465

11,210

As reported in our audit plan, the planned and final fee for code work is above the scale fee, as the scale fee does not take into account the
Council’s group accounts. This has been approved by PSAA.
Our planned fee for the certification of claims and returns is based on the indicative scale fee set by the PSAA. The final fee will be reported to you
in our annual certification report, upon completion of this work.

36

We confirm we have not undertaken any non-audit work outside of the PSAA’s requirements.

EY  23

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory
Ernst & Young LLP
© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.
ED None
The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.
Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

37

Agenda Item 10
BRECKLAND COUNCIL GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME
Meeting Date
29 September 2017

Agenda Item

Officer Responsible

Quarter 1 2017-18 Risk Report
Annual Audit Letter

Executive Director Strategy & Governance
External Audit

01 December 2017
Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
Head of Internal Audit
Follow Up Report on Internal Audit
Head of Internal Audit
Recommendaitons
Mid Year Treasury Management Report 2017/18
Executive Director Commercialisation
Treasury Management Policy & Strategy 2018/19
Executive Director Commercialisation
Quarter 2 2017-18 Risk Report
Executive Director Strategy & Governance
Self Assessment Report
Head of Internal Audit
AFTER THE MEETING
Training for Members - self assessment
Head of Internal Audit
16 February 2018
Quarter 3 2017-18 Risk Report
Executive Director Strategy & Governance
Audit Plan 2017/18
External Audit
Annual Grant Certification Report 2016/17
External Audit
Stratgic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2018/19
Head of Internal Audit
DATES TO BE CONFIRMED
June 2018
Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendaitons
Annual Report and Opinion 2017/18
Draft un-audited Statement of Accounts 2017-18
Quarter 4 2018-18 Risk Report

Head of Internal Audit
Head of Internal Audit
Head of Internal Audit
Executive Director of Commercialisation
Executive Director Strategy & Governance

Audited Statement of Accounts 2017-18

Executive Director of Commercialisation

July 2018

38

Agenda Item 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

39

